
tion of a passport, the question of a passport serv­
ing to identify a correspondent; the question of a 
document similar to a passport and internationally 
accepted. 

Since that division could obviously no longer 
be applied, Mr. Baroody would accept the division 
proposed by the Chairman. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the first part 
of paragraph 2 as it stood after the adoption of 
the Lebanese amendment. 

The first part of the paragraph was adopted 
hy 27 votes to 5, with 10 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the second part 
of the paragraph as follows: "or a similar docu­
ment internationally accepted". 

39 

The second part of paragraph 2 was adopted 
by 28 votes to 7, with 8 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the whole of 
paragraph 2, as amended. 

Paragraph 2, as amended, was adopted by 31 
votes to 8, with 8 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6.25 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-SIXTH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Wednesday, 13 April1949, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairman: Mrs. Bodil BEGTRUP (Denmark). 

120. Freedom of information: report 
of the Economic and Social Coun­
cil (A/631) (continued) 

DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE GATHERING AND 
INTERNATIONAL TRANSMISSION OF NEWS (E/ 
1065) (CONTINUED) 

Article 1, paragraph 3 

The CHAIRMAN stated that the basic text of 
paragraph 3 of article 1 and the amendments 
thereto were to be found in document A/C.3/ 
419/Rev.l. 

Mr. KAYSER (France) said that the Polish 
amendment to paragraph 3 (A/C.3/416) would 
give rise to an important discussion. He himself 
could see no particular reason why it should be 
included in paragraph 3. It was an idea which 
could just as well be inserted in many other 
articles of the draft convention, as the representa­
tive of Poland himself seemed to realize, since 
he had submitted a very similar amendment to 
article 7 (A/C.3j433). 

The text of the Polish amendment was one 
with which most representatives were already 
familiar: it had been submitted to the Conference 
on Freedom of Information1 and again during the 
Economic and Social Council's seventh session2 

and both times it had been rejected. There seemed 
no reason why it should not suffer a similar fate 
at the hands of the Third Committee. Mr. Kayser 
felt sure that the Polish representative realized 

'See E/Conf.6/SR.7. 
'See E/ AC:J:l /SR.16. 

question du passeport; question du passeport ser­
vant a !'identification comme correspondant; ques­
tion d'un document analogue au passeport et 
ayant une valeur internationale reconnue. 

Cette division ne peut evidemment etre mainte­
nue, aussi M. Baroody acceptera-t-il la division 
proposee par le President. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix la premiere partie 
du paragraphe 2, telle qu'elle se presente apres 
!'adoption de l'amendement du Liban. 

Par 27 voix contre 5, avec 10 abstentions, la 
premiere partie du paragraphe est adoptee. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix la seconde partie 
du paragraphe, constituee par les mots: "soit par 
un document analogue ayant une valeur inter­
nationale reconnue". 

Par 28 voix contre 7, avec 8 abstentions, la 
seconde partie du paragraphe 2 est adoptee. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix !'ensemble du 
paragraphe 2 tel qu'il a ete amende. 

Par 31 voix contre 8, avec 8 abstentions, le para­
graphe 2, tel qu'il a ete amende, est adopte. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 25. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT-SIXIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le mercredi 13 avril1949, a 10 h. 30. 

President: Mme Bodil BEGTRUP (Danemark). 

120. Liherte de I' information: rapport 
du Conseil economique et social 
(A/631) (suite) 

PROJET DE CONVENTION RELATIF A L'ACCES AUX 
INFORMATIONS ET A LEUR TRANSMISSION D'UN 
PAYS A L'AUTRE (E/1065) (SUITE) 

Article premier, paragraphe 3 

Le PRESIDENT indique que le texte primitif du 
paragraphe 3 de !'article premier et les amende­
ments qu'on propoe d'y apporter figurent dans le 
document A/C.3/419/Rev.l. 

M. KAYSER (France) estime que l'amendement 
presente par la delegation de la Pologne au para­
graphe 3 (A/C.3/416) donnera lieu a une im­
portante discussion. Le representant de la France 
ne voit aucune raison particuliere de l'inserer 
dans le paragraphe 3. L'idee contenue dans cet 
amendement pourrait tout aussi bien figurer dans 
maints autres articles du pro jet de convention; 
le representant de la Pologne lui-meme s'en 
est apparemment rendu compte, puisqu'il a pro­
pose un amendement presque analogue pour !'ar­
ticle 7 (A/C.3/433). 

La plupart des representants son deja fami­
liarises avec le texte de l'amendement de la 
Pologne, puisque celui-ci a ete presente lors de 
la Conference sur la liberte de l'information1 et 
de nouveau au cours de la septieme session du 
Conseil economique et social2 ; il fut d'ailleurs 
rejete a ces deux occasions. I1 n'y a pas de rai­
son, apparemment, pour que le meme sort ne lui 
soit pas reserve a la Troisieme Commission. 

'Voir E/Conf.6/SR.7. 
'Voir E/AC.27/SR.16. 



his amendment would probably be rejected, and 
that he would use the rejection for propaganda 
purposes. In order to avoid that, the French 
delegation had submitted an amendment to the 
preamble incorporating the ideas contained in 
the Polish amendment (A/C.3/425). Although 
he could not accept the inclusion of the ideas in 
the place where the Polish representative had 
submitted them, he did, naturally, support the 
ideas in themselves and thought they should be 
included in the preamble, where they would form 
the guiding principles for the draft convention as 
a whole. He had not used the text submitted by 
the Polish representative; his amendment had 
been inspired by resolution No. 2 of the Confer­
ence on Freedom of Information which had been 
adopted1 by a vote of 40 in favour and none 
against. 

It might be objected that his amendment did 
not contain any definite provisions to prevent the 
publication of false or distorted news. That point 
was, however, covered by his proposal for the 
insertion of a new section in the draft convention, 
entitled "Section II: International right of cor­
rection" ( AjC.3j425). It might also be argued 
that the Polish amendment involved an obligation, 
while the French did not. In that connexion, Mr. 
Kayser wondered what actual effect the adoption 
of the Polish amendment would have in Poland, 
if that country were to ratify the convention. In 
countries governed according to the communist 
regime, all countries governed on similar lines 
were considered, by definition, to be essentially 
peace-loving in character, while countries gov­
erned according to the capitalist system were 
automatically considered to be inclined to aggres­
sion. Thus, any information coming from a cap­
italist country would automatically be classified 
as propaganda in favour of war and would not 
be admitted. If an international authority were 
to decide what information contained war propa­
ganda, all would be well; but some delegations 
did not admit any such international authority and 
thought that their own Governments were the 
only ones qualified to decide the matter. 

A new form of propaganda likely to impair 
friendly relations between States had recently been 
introduced ; that did not seem to be covered by 
the Polish amendment. The form of propaganda 
to which he was referring was that contained in 
the systematic alarmist reports representing war 
as imminent and inevitable. 

In conclusion, Mr. Kayser said that his dele­
gation was opposed to the Polish amendment ; 
he hoped that his own amendment to the pre­
amble would be adopted instead. In that way the 
Committee would express its disapproval of war 
propaganda while at the same time avoiding the 
disadvantages of including in paragraph 3 the 
text submitted by the Polish representative. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
withdrew the amendment listed in his delegation's 

1 See Final Act of the United Nations Conference on 
the Freedom of Information, annex C, page 22. 

40 

M. Kayser est convaincu que le representant de 
Ia Pologne se rend compte que son amendement 
sera probablement rejete et qu'il exploitera 
ce fait a des fins de propagande. Afin d'eviter 
cette issue, Ia delegation de Ia France a presente 
un amendement (AjC.3j425) au preambule de 
Ia convention qui reprend les idees exposees 
dans l'amendement de Ia Pologne. M. Kayser 
ne peut accepter que ces idees figurent Ia ou le 
representant de !a Pologne le propose, mais il 
est, naturellement, en faveur de ces idees en 
tant que telles et estime qu'il conviendrait de 
les inserer dans le preambule, ou elles constitue­
raient les principes directeurs de !'ensemble de la 
convention. Le texte de l'amendement de Ia 
France ne reprend toutefois pas les termes memes 
de l'amendement de la Pologne; il s'inspire de 
la resolution No 2 adoptee par la Conference sur 
la liberte de l'information1 par 40 voix contre zero. 

On peut reprocher a l'amendement de !a France 
de ne contenir aucune disposition visant a pre­
venir !a publication de nouvelles fausses ou defor­
mees. Toutefois la delegation fran<;aise a ete ins­
piree par cette preoccupation en proposant !'inser­
tion dans le projet de convention d'une nouvelle 
section intitulee: "Section II: Du droit de rec­
tification internationale" ( AjC.3j425). On peut 
egalement pretendre que l'amendement de la 
Pologne implique une obligation, alors que !'amen­
dement de Ia France n'en implique auqune. 
M. Kayser se demande a ce propos quels seraient 
en fait, en Pologne, les effets de l'amendement 
propose par ce pays, au cas ou la Pologne rati­
fierait Ia convention. Pour les pays qui se trouvent 
sous un regime communiste, tous les pays gouver­
nes selon un regime analogue sont, par definition, 
des pays essentiellement pacifiques, alors que les 
pays gouvernes d'apres le systeme capitaliste, 
sont automatiquement consideres comme ayant des 
tendances agressives. Ainsi, toutes informations 
provenant de pays capitalistes seront systema­
tiquement classees comme propagande en faveur 
de !a guerre et la porte leur sera fermee. Si !'on 
voulait confier a une autorite internationale le soin 
de decider quelles informations contiennent une 
propagande en faveur de Ia guerre, tout irait 
bien, mais certaines delegations se refusent a 
accepter une telle autorite internationale et con­
siderent que seuls leurs propres gouvernements 
sont competents pour trancher Ia question. 

On vient de lancer recemment une nouvelle 
forme de propagande qui risque fort de nuire 
aux relations amicales entre les Etats ; l'amende­
ment de Ia Pologne ne semble pas en tenir compte. 
Cette forme de propagande est celle que repn!­
sentent les nouvelles alarmistes systematiques qui 
montrent Ia guerre comme imminente et inevi­
table. 

M. Kayser declare, pour conclure, que sa dele­
gation ne saurait accepter l'amendement de la 
Pologne; il espere que l'amendement qu'il a lui­
meme presente au preambule sera adopte a sa 
place. De cette maniere, la Commission exprime­
rait sa desapprobation de Ia propagande belli­
ciste, tout en evitant les inconvenients qui resul­
teraient de !'insertion dans le paragraphe 3 du 
texte propose par le representant de la Pologne. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) retire 
l'amendement inscrit au nom de sa delegation 

'Voir l'Acte final de Ia Conference des Nations Unies 
sur Ia liberte de /'information, annexe C, page 24. 



name in document A/C.3j419/Rev.l. He had in­
tended it to be taken as a formal amendment. 

Mr. DROHOJOWSKI (Poland) referred to an 
article in The New York Times of 13 April 1949 
in which the United States representative was 
reported to have expressed his strong opposition 
to the Polish amendment. Mr. Drohojowski ob­
jected to the practice of publishing opinions about 
amendments before they were actually discussed 
by the Committee. In his opinion, such a practice 
might well be construed as intimidation, even 
though it might not have been intended as such. 

With regard to the remarks made by the rep­
resentative of France, he wished to point out some 
other aspects of the question. He referred to the 
book by William Ernest Hocking entitled, Free­
dom of the Press: A Framework of Principle, 
which contained comments by many prominent 
people, none of whom was a communist. In that 
book there appeared a statement by Mr. Archibald 
MacLeish to the effect that, although freedom of 
information was a right to which everyone was 
entitled, in practice only those who had access to 
the Press could exercise that right. That state­
ment made it clear that the Press was controlled 
by a limited minority. In another part of the same 
book there appeared a statement to the effect that 
false reports likely to impair friendly relations 
between States might become so bad as to demand 
and admit of legal remedy. 

Mr. Drohojowski then quoted from the U.S. 
News and World Report of 1 April 1949. That 
magazine, the cover of which bore a picture of 
the new Secretary of Defence, contained an article 
under the heading, "United States Defense Zone 
-The World". The article included a map divid­
ing the world into four zones, with Franco Spain 
in the zone marked "neutral". He had not quoted 
the magazine as an example of warmongering, but 
in his opinion it did definitely give the impression 
that the United States was trying to rule the whole 
world. 

He proceeded to quote statements from a book 
entitled, Journalism in the United States by 
Robert W. Jones, which included remarks by 
Benjamin Franklin and Thomas Jefferson about 
inaccurate reports in the Press. At the same time 
he made it quite clear that he was quoting entirely 
from American sources and was not proffering 
any criticism of his own. The book he had men­
tioned stated further that the New Y ark Journal 
had stirred up a wave of hostility against Spain 
in 1898 and might even be held responsible for 
the outbreak of war against that country. Fur­
thermore, the Hearst papers had been banned in 
England and Canada in 1916, and in 1939 Mr. 
Harold Ickes was reported to have said that the 
Press had financial affiliations which limited its 
freedom. 

In view of all those examples, Mr. Drohojowski 
considered the anxiety for the complete freedom 
of the Press shown by the representative of France 
to be a little out of place. There were already 
certain restrictions on journalism. For instance, 
there was a law in the United States which made 
it impossible to send obscene publications through 
the post. That showed that the law could take a 

41 

dans le document AjC.3/419jRev.l. II avait sim­
plement fait une suggestion, au cours de la 
182eme seance, sans vouloir lui donner le sens 
d'un amendement formel. 

M. DROHOJOWSKI ( Pologne) mentionne un ar­
ticle du New Y ark Times du 13 avril 1949 ou 
il est dit que le representant des Etats-Unis a 
manifeste une forte opposition a l'amendement 
de la Pologne. M. Drohojowski proteste contre 
cette fac;on de publier des jugements portes sur 
des amendements avant que ceux-ci aient ete 
effectivement etudies par la Commission. A son 
avis, on peut voir dans un tel procede une tenta­
tive d'intimidation, bien que 1' on n'ait peut-etre 
pas eu une telle intention. 

Passant aux observations formulees par le re­
presentant de la France, M. Drohojowski desire 
souligner certains autres aspects de la question. 
II cite le livre de William Ernest Hocking intitule 
Fr~edom of the Press: A Framework of Principle, 
qut renferme les observations de nombreuses per­
sonnalites dont aucune n'est communiste. Ce livre 
contient une declaration de M. Archibald 
MacLeish selon laquelle si toute personne a droit 
a la liberte d'information, en pratique seuls ceux 
qui ont acces a la presse peuvent exercer ce 
droit. Cette affirmation montre clairement que la 
presse est controh~e par une minorite restreinte. 
A un autre endroit du meme livre, il est dit que 
des informations fausses de nature a nuire aux 
relations amicales entre Etats peuvent devenir 
si graves qu'il soit alors necessaire et justifie 
de recourir a la loi. 

M. Drohojowski cite alors le U.S. News and 
World Report du ler avril 1949. Cette revue, 
dont la couverture porte une photographie du 
nouveau Secretaire d'Etat a la defense nationale 
contient un article intitule: "La zone de defens~ 
des Etats-Unis: le monde". Cet article comprend 
une carte ou le monde est divise en quatre zones 
l'Espagne franquiste figurant dans la zone mar~ 
quee "neutre". Le representant de la Pologne 
ne donne pas ces citations comme un exemple 
de propagande de guerre; cependant, a son avis, 
cette publication cree certainement !'impression 
que les Etats-Unis essaient de regner sur le reste 
du monde . 
. M. Drohojowski cite ensuite des passages d'un 

hvre de Robert W. Jones intitule Journalism in the 
United States qui contient des observations de 
Benjamin Franklin et de Thomas Jefferson con­
cernant !'inexactitude des informations de presse. 
Le representant de la Pologne signale a ce propos 
que tout ce qu'il cite est de source americaine 
et qu'il ne presente done aucune critique per­
sonnell~. Le livre en question declare un peu 
plus 1om que le New Y ark Journal a provoque 
en 1898 un mouvement d'hostilite contre l'Es­
pagne et peut meme etre considere comme res­
ponsable du declenchement de la guerre contre 
ce pays. En outre, les journaux de Hearst ont 
ete interdits en Angleterre et au Canada en 1916 
et M. Harold Ickes aurait affirme en 1939 que 
des attaches financieres limitaient la liberte de 
la presse. 

J?evant t~1;1s . ces exemples, M. Drohojowski 
estlme que lmsrstance avec laquelle le repn~sen­
tant de la France demande la liberte complete 
de la presse est legerement deplacee. II existe 
~eja certaines restrict.ions en matiere de journa­
hsme. Par exemple, Il y a aux Etats-U nis une 
loi qui rend impossible l'envoi de publications 
obscenes par la poste. Cela montre que la loi 



hand in the matter and it was surely far more 
important to prohibit publications containing 
propaganda in favour of war. There were many 
government controls in other fields such as the 
"Federal Pure Food and Drugs Act" in the 
United States. There was therefore no reason why 
the Press alone should be left free and untram­
melled to do what harm it liked. 

42 

The representative of France had objected to 
the place suggested for the Polish amendment. 
Mr. Drohojowski agreed that the principle con­
tained in his amendment should cover the whole 
convention, but he thought that it was perfectly 
in place in paragraph 3 of article 1, because there 
it would involve an obligation on the part of 
Governments to comply with its provisions. 

Mr. MAYRAND (Canada) stated that his dele­
gation entirely shared the French representative's 
views regarding the Polish amendment. 

To his regret, he was also unable to accept the 
Peruvian amendment (A/C.3j415) to introduce 
the word "authentic'' before "opinion". In the 
absence of a disinterested international authority, 
the decision on what was and what was not 
authentic would be left to Governments, which 
would use widely divergent criteria. The effect of 
the Peruvian amendment would be to open the 
door to confusion. 

The object of the draft convention was to 
facilitate the gathering and international trans­
mission of news; the Canadian representative pre­
ferred to run the risk of having some unauthentic 
news transmitted rather than the risk of having 
authentic news suppressed. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
said that his delegation could not accept the Polish 
amendment, because the latter would enable Gov­
ernments to suppress all news material which was 
contrary to their ideology. The Netherlands was 
concerned not with any one ideology, but with true 
freedom of information. 

Mr. VRBA (Czechoslovakia) observed that the 
debate on article 1 had shown that the text pre­
sented to the Committee had contained many 
ambiguities. Something more important than clar­
ity, however, was at stake. Improvements in word­
ing alone would not render article 1 acceptable 
so long as it failed to specify two requirements: 
news material should be true and should serve the 
ends of peace. 

The draft convention should protect the collec­
tion and dissemination of true news material only ; 
moreover, it should not cover news designed to 
foment war or to disturb friendly relations be­
tween States. The Committee was faced with a 
grave responsibility: the drafting of paragraph 3 
would determine the purposes for which the draft 
convention as a whole would be used. 

peut intervenir en Ia matiere. II serait certaine­
ment beaucoup plus important d'interdire Ia dif­
fusion des publications contenant une propagande 
en faveur de Ia guerre. Le gouvernement exerce 
son controle en beaucoup d'autres domaines, ainsi 
qu'en temoigne le Federal Pure Food and Drugs 
Act en vigueur aux Etats-Unis. II n'y a done au­
cune raison pour que Ia presse seule reste 
degagee de toute entrave et libre de faire tout 
le mal qu'il lui plait. 

Le representant de Ia France a presente des 
objections au sujet de l'endroit ou viendrait s'inse­
rer l'amendement de Ia Pologne. M. Drohojowski 
reconnait que le principe enonce dans l'amende­
ment presente par sa delegation devrait s'appli­
quer a I' ensemble du projet de convention; il 
estime pourtant que cet amendement serait par­
faitement a sa place au paragraphe 3 de !'article 
premier car, place a cet endroit, il mettrait 
les gouvernements en demeure de se conformer 
au dispositions qu'il contient. 

M. MAYRAND (Canada) declare que sa delega­
tion partage entierement les vues du representant 
de la France en ce qui concerne l'amendement 
de la Pologne. 

A son regret, il ne peut pas non plus accepter 
l'amendement du Perou (A/C.3/415) tendant a 
ajouter le mot "authentiques" apres le mot "opi­
nions". En !'absence d'une autorite internationale 
desinteressee, c'est aux gouvernements, qui utili­
seraient des criteres differant du tout au tout, 
qu'il appartiendrait de se prononcer sur ce qui 
est authentique et ce qui ne !'est pas. L'amende­
ment du Perou aurait pour effet de preter a 
confusion. 

Le projet de convention a pour objet de faci­
liter l'acces aux informations et leur transmission 
d'un pays a !'autre; le representant du Canada 
prefere courir le risque de voir transmettre une 
fausse nouvelle plutot que celui de voir supprimer 
une information authentique. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) ex­
plique que sa delegation ne peut accepter l'amende­
ment de Ia Pologne, du fait que ce dernier per­
mettrait aux gouvernements de supprimer tous 
les documents d'information contraires a leur ideo­
logie. Ce dont les Pays-Bas se soucient, ce n'est 
pas d'une ideologie donnee, mais de Ia veritable 
Iiberte de !'information. 

M. VRBA (Tchecoslovaquie) fait observer que 
Ia discussion sur !'article premier a montre que 
le texte soumis a la Commission contient de 
nombreux passages equivoques. II y va cepen­
dant d'un element plus important que la clarte. 
Une simple amelioration de la redaction ne rendra 
pas !'article premier acceptable tant que deux 
conditions n'y figureront pas expressement: les 
documents d'information doivent etre exacts et 
doivent servir Ia paix. 

Le projet de convention ne devrait proteger 
l'acces a des documents d'information et leur pro­
pagation que s'ils sont authentiques; d'autre part, 
il ne devrait pas s'appliquer aux nouvelles des­
tinees a fomenter la guerree ou a troubler les 
relations amicales entre Etats. Une lourde res­
ponsabilite incombe a la Commission: c'est la 
redaction du paragraphe 3 qui determinera les 
fins auxquelles !'ensemble du projet de conven­
tion sera utilise. 



The only amendment to that paragraph which 
introduced the two concepts of truth and peace 
was the Polish amendment; for that reason, the 
Czechoslovak delegation supported it wholeheart­
edly. While it was true that not everything that 
had to be said on the subject of freedom of infor­
mation could be said in article 1, it was essential 
that paragraph 3 of that article should contain the 
fullest possible definition of the term ''news 
material". 

Some representatives from countries in which 
freedom allegedly was preferred to truth voiced 
the opinion that under the Polish amendment the 
State would have to decide on the authenticity of 
news material. The people of Czechoslovakia 
would not be afraid to delegate such right to the 
authorities of their State. Since Mr. Vbra was not 
sure whether the representatives of other coun­
tries trusted in the authorities of their States in 
the same manner, he brought up the question why 
the decision on crimes against truth or peace 
should be more difficult than the court decision 
on an ordinary crime, such as murder or fraud. 
There was no moral difference between the two 
types of crime. 

Mr. V rba did not think that the delegations 
which supported the Polish amendment could be 
accused of not loving freedom; their object was 
to ensure that the convention did not sanction 
license. 

The Czechoslovak Government had no desire 
to force its opinions upon correspondents of the 
foreign Press; but it wanted objective reporting, 
and was opposed to the deliberate distortion of 
news, of which one example was cited among 
many others, namely, the entirely untruthful 
article by Mr. Alsop in The New York Herald 
Tribune reporting the imprisonment of Czecho­
slovak Vice-Premier Z. Fierlinger. 

Newspapers in a number of countries prac­
tised pseudo-freedom as opposed to genuine free­
dom; and it should not be forgotten that, in the 
hands of warmongers, freedom of misinforma­
tion could become a deadly weapon. A convention 
which granted such freedom without at the same 
time imposing certain obligations and ensuring 
truthful reporting would be meaningless. The 
Czechoslovak delegation was convinced that un­
less the Polish amendment were adopted, the 
convention would merely encourage the collection 
and transmission of false news and give a free 
hand to warmongers. 

Mr. THEODOROPOULOS (Greece) fully agreed 
with the views stated by the French representa­
tive. His country's recent bitter experience pre­
cluded him from voting for the Polish amend­
ment; he would, however, support the French 
amendment to the preamble, since the principle 
which it embodied was dear to the hearts of all 
peace-loving nations. 

Mr. RAo (India) sympathized with the pur­
pose of the Polish amendment, but did not think 
that paragraph 3 of article 1 was the proper place 
for it. While all news material should conform to 
the standards set in that amendment, the pre­
amble to the draft convention under discussion 

43 

Le seul amendement a ce paragraphe dans le­
quel apparaissent les deux concepts de verite et de 
paix est l'amendement de la Pologne; c'est pour 
cette raison que le representant de la Tcheco­
slovaquie l'appuie sans reserve. S'il est vrai que 
tout ce qui doit etre dit sur le sujet de la liberte 
de !'information ne pourrait etre dit dans l'article 
premier, il est indispensable cependant que dans 
le paragraphe 3 de cet article figure la definition 
la plus complete possible du terme: "documents 
d'information". 

Les representants de certains pays ou l'on dit 
preferer la liberte ala verite ont exprime l'opinion 
que, aux termes de l'amendement de la Pologne, 
il appartiendrait a l'Etat de decider de l'authenticite 
des documents d'information. Le peuple tcheco­
slovaque ne craindrait pas de deleguer ce droit aux 
autorites de son pays. M. Vrba n'etant pas sur 
que les representants d'autres pays aient la meme 
confiance dans leur gouvernement, il souleve la 
question de savoir pourquoi il serait plus difficile 
de prendre une decision touchant les crimes contre 
la verite ou la paix que de se prononcer, comme 
le fait un tribunal, sur un crime ordinaire tel 
qu'un meurtre ou un dol. Du point de vue moral, 
il n'y a aucune difference entre ces deux cate­
gories de crimes. 

Le representant de la Tchecoslovaquie n'est pas 
d'avis que les delegations qui appuient l'amende­
ment de la Pologne puissent etre accusees de ne 
pas etre eprises de liberte; le but qu'elles visent 
est d'assurer que la convention n'encourage pas 
la licence. 

Le Gouvernement tchecoslovaque ne desire 
nullement imposer ses vues aux correspondants 
de la presse etrangere, mais il veut que les com­
muniques soient objectifs; il est oppose a ce qu'on 
denature deliberement les nouvelles: c'est la un 
travers dont on peut citer un exemple entre 
bien d'autres, a savoir, !'article absolument men­
sanger de M. Alsop dans le New York Herald 
Tribune, ou il rapporte l'emprisonnement du Vice­
President du Conseil tchecoslovaque, Z. Fier­
linger. 

Dans bon nombre de pays, les journaux jouis­
sent d'une pseudo-liberte au lieu d'une liberte 
reelle, et il ne faut pas oublier que, aux mains 
des bellicistes, la liberte de repandre de fausses 
informations peut devenir une arme de mort. 
Une convention qui accorderait pareille liberte 
sans imposer en meme temps certaines obliga­
tions ni assurer !'exactitude des nouvelles trans­
mises serait vide de sens. La delegation de la 
Tchecoslovaquie est persuadee que, sans !'adop­
tion de l'amendement de la Pologne, la convention 
fera simplement le jeu de ceux qui rassemblent 
et transmettent de fausses nouvelles et laissera 
les mains libres aux £auteurs de guerre. 

M. THJionoROPOULos (Grece) souscrit entiere­
ment aux vues qu'a exprimees le representant 
de la France. La cruelle experience que vient de 
vivre son pays l'empeche de voter en faveur 
de l'amendement de la Pologne; il appuiera ce­
pendant l'amendement propose par la France au 
preambule, etant donne que le principe qu'il 
renferme est cher a toutes les nations pacifiques. 

M. RAo (Inde), tout en comprenant les inten­
tions dont s'inspire l'amendement polonais, ne 
croit pas qu'il soit a sa place dans le paragraphe 
3 de l'article premier. Certes, tous les documents 
d'information devraient repondre aux normes de­
finies par cet amendement, mais le preambule 



already contained a reference to improving under­
standing between peoples, while the preamble of 
the draft convention on the institution of an 
international right of correction - which dealt 
entirely with the correction of false or distorted 
reports - referred to "the maintenance of 
friendly relations between P.eoples" and the pre­
amble of the draft convention on freedom of 
information referred to the promotion of the peace 
and welfare of mankind. Thus, all the points con­
tained in the Polish amendment were covered 
elsewhere. 

Mr. Rao did not believe that one State should 
be able to control the news material disseminated 
in another. A film on India currently shown in 
the United States contained grave misrepresenta­
tion of the religious and social customs of the 
Indian people. That film should never have been 
released; yet the decision was certainly for the 
United States and not the Indian authorities to 
make. 

The definition of news material should not be 
overloaded with qualifying phrases; for that 
reason, and for that reason alone, the Indian 
delegation would vote against the Polish amend­
ment. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) interpreted the words 
"authentic opinion", as proposed by the Peruvian 
representative, to mean opinion reflecting all 
points of view, and not that of any one political 
party or group. He thought that idea might be 
more clearly stated if those words were replaced 
by "balanced expression of opinion"- an amend­
ment which he hoped the Peruvian representa­
tive would find acceptable. 

He was unable to vote for the Polish amend­
ment because its effect would be to promote cen­
sorship, if not by Governments then by the 
information agencies themselves; if that amend­
ment were adopted, an agency would be unable to 
report such news as speeches made by Govern­
ment officials, if those speeches did, in fact, incite 
to war. It was the duty of information agencies 
to report all news. 

Mr. Noriega called attention to his amendment 
to article 3 (A/C.3/431), which dealt with the 
duties and obligations of correspondents and 
which used the language of the Charter. As all 
Members of the United Nations had agreed to 
assume those duties under the Charter, they 
would surely agree that the same duties - which 
included furthering international understanding 
and contributing to the maintenance of interna­
tional peace and security - should devolve also 
upon correspondents and news agencies in the 
performance of their work. 

Mr. AzKOUL (Lebanon) called attention to the 
fact that the definition of the term "news material" 
would determine the scope of the draft convention 
as a whole, and consequently deserved careful 
consideration. 

He fully agreed with the principle contained in 
the Polish amendment. The mission of the Press 
was to spread knowledge and to strengthen 
friendly relations between nations. There was 

44 

du projet de convention en discussion fait deja 
allus!on a la necessite d'ameliorer la compre­
hensiOn mutuelle entre les peuples, tandis que 
le preambule du projet de convention relatif a 
!'institution du droit de rectification en matiere 
internationale- qui traite uniquement de la recti­
fication des informations fausses ou deformees­
parle du "maintien de Ia bonne entente entre les 
peuples"; d'autre part, le preambule clu pro jet 
de convention relatif a la liberte de ]'information 
parle cl'assurer Ia paix et le progres de l'humanite. 
Tous les points de l'amendement polonais sont 
clone traites dans d'autres articles. 

M. Rao ne croit pas qu'un Etat doive avoir 
la possibilite d'exercer un contr&le sur les in­
formations diffusees dans un autre Etat. On fait 
passer en ce moment aux Etats-Unis un film sur 
l'Incle qui denature gravement les coutumes reli­
gieuses et sociales du peuple de ce pays. La 
projection de ce film n'aurait jamais du etre per­
mise; c'etait pourtant aux autorites des Etats­
Unis et non a celles de l'Inde qu'il appartenait 
d'en decider. 

II ne faudrait pas surcharger d'incidentes ex­
plicatives la definition des documents d'informa­
tion: ne serait-ce que pour cette raison, la dele­
gation de l'Inde votera contre l'amendement polo­
nais. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) interprete les mots 
"opinions authentiques", que propose le represen­
tant du Perou, comme signifiant une opinion qui 
reflete tous les points de vue et non celui d'un 
parti ou d'un groupe politique quelconque. II 
pense que l'idee pourrait etre plus clairement 
enoncee en rempla<;ant ces mots par: "expressions 
equilibrees d'une opinion". II espere que le repre­
sentant du Perou voudra bien accepter cet amen­
dement. 

M. Noriega n'est pas en mesure de voter en 
faveur de l'amendement polonais parce que ce 
dernier aurait pour effet d'encourager Ia censure, 
sinon par les gouvernements, du moins par les 
entreprises d'information elles-memes. Si l'on 
adoptait cet amendement, une agence ne serait 
pas en mesure de rendre compte, par exemple, 
de discours prononces par des fonctionnaires ou 
personnalites d'un gouvernement, s'il s'agissait 
de discours incitant en fait a la guerre. Or, il 
est du devoir des agences d'information de trans­
mettre toutes les informations. 

L'orateur attire !'attention sur son propre amen­
dement a !'article 3 (A/C.3/431) qui traite des 
devoirs et obligations des correspondants, dans 
les termes memes de la Charte. Les Membres de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, ayant tous ac­
cepte ces devoirs en vertu de la Charte, seront 
surement d'accord pour que ces memes devoirs 
incombent egalement aux correspondants et aux 
agences d'information dans l'exercice de leur fonc­
tion, notamment en ce qui concerne le develop­
pement de la comprehension internationale et la 
necessite de contribuer au maintien de la paix et 
de la securite internationales. 

M. AZKOUL (Liban) attire !'attention sur le fait 
que Ia definition du terme "documents d'informa­
tion" determinera Ia portee de tout le projet de 
convention, et merite done d'etre etudiee avec soin. 

II est entierement d'accord sur le principe de 
l'amendement polonais. La presse a pour mission 
de renseigner ainsi que de resserrer les relations 
amicales entre les nations. Les correspondants et 



45 

consequently a moral obligation upon correspond­
ents and information agencies to eschew false and 
distorted news and war propaganda. The Polish 
amendment to paragraph 3, if adopted, however, 
would only complicate international relations, in­
asmuch as it would permit censorship by one State 
of news disseminated in another State. 

In reply to the Czechoslovak representa~ive, 
Mr. Azkoul said that whereas common law cnmes 
could be determined by means of physical evi­
dence, a crime on a moral or intellectual plane 
was far less susceptible of proof. Moreover, an 
individual correspon,!dent could distort only a 
certain amount of truth; the State, with the un­
limited means at its disposal, could do away with 
both freedom and truth. If a choice had to be 
made between possible war propaganda and dis­
tortion of news by individuals, on the one hand, 
and the suppression of all freedom of informa­
tion by the State, on the other, then Mr. Azkoul 
preferred the former. 

He would consequently vote against both the 
Polish amendment and any other - such as the 
Peruvian amendment - which introduced a quali­
fying adjective or phrase before the word "opin-
. " IOn . 

Mr. ALVARADO (Peru) was prepared to accept 
any suggested redrafting to meet his objection 
that the first phrase of paragraph 3 was tauto­
logical. With regard to the Mexican suggestion 
for the clarification of the word "authentic" in 
the Peruvian amendment (A/C.3/415), the word 
"balanced" did not fully reflect his intention. The 
appropriate word - which need not necessarily 
be "authentic" - should convey the required 
notion that the opinion transmitted had emanated 
from a responsible and identifiable source and 
was not merely the product of the correspondent's 
own imagination. The correspondent or agency, 
not the Government concerned, should be respon­
sible for seeing that that stipulation had been met. 

Mr. PENTEADO (Brazil) opposed the Polish 
amendment. Its adoption would imply that any 
Government or group would be empowered to 
decide what news might be transmitted; worse, 
the words "designed . . . to provoke . . . any 
threat to the peace" might even be interpreted 
to cover an attempt to determine the correspond­
ent's intentions. Such implications ran entirely 
counter to the whole purpose of the convention ; 
namely, to safeguard the freedom of information. 

Mr. DEDIJER (Yugoslavia) complained that the 
French representative had been illogical. That 
representative's argument appeared to be that 
news material designed to provoke any threat to 
the peace was deleterious, but that it was impos­
sible to define such news and in any case nothing 
could be done to prevent its dissemination. While 
it was true that the condemnation of such material 
would extend throughout the convention if it 
were placed in the preamble, the Polish repre-

les entreprises d'information ont done !'obligation 
morale d'eviter les informations fausses ou dena­
tun~es et la propagande de guerre. N eanmoins, 
l'amendement polonais au paragraphe 3, s'il etait 
adopte, ne ferait que compliquer les relations in­
ternationales du fait qu'il permettrait a un Etat 
de censurer les nouvelles diffusees dans un autre 
Etat. 

En reponse au representant de la Tchecoslova­
quie, M. Azkoul declare que l'on peut etablir 
!'existence des crimes de droit commun par des 
preuves materielles, mais que la preuve est bien 
plus difficile a faire lorsqu'il s'agit d'un crime 
dans le domaine moral ou intellectuel. De plus, 
un correspondant isole ne peut deformer la verite 
que dans une mesure restreinte; l'Etat, grace aux 
moyens illimites dont il dispose, peut au con­
traire faire fi de la liberte comme de la verite. 
S'il fallait faire un choix entre d'une part la 
possibilite d'une propagande de guerre et la de­
formation des nouvelles par des individus, et 
d'autre part la suppression par l'Etat de toute 
liberte d'information, M. Azkoul trouve que, de 
ces deux maux, le premier serait le moindre. 

I1 votera done contre l'amendement polonais 
et contre tout autre amen dement - celui du Perou 
par exemple- qui introduirait dans le texte une 
expression ou un adjectif qualifiant le mot: "opi­
nions". 

M. ALVARADO (Perou) est dispose a accepter 
toute proposition de remaniement qui tiendrait 
compte de la critique qu'il a formulee a l'egard 
de la premiere phrase du paragraphe 3, qui, selon 
lui, est tautologique. En ce qui concerne la pro­
position du Mexique qui tend a preciser, dans 
l'amendement du Perou (A/C.3/415), le sens 
du mot "authentiques", le mot: balanced ( equi­
libre) ne rend pas absolument !'idee du repre­
sentant du Perou. Le mot qui conviendrait- et 
qui n'est pas necessairement le mot "authentiques" 
- doit rendre cette idee qu'il faut que les opinions 
transmises proviennent d'une source digne de foi 
et identifiable et ne soient pas simplement le 
produit de !'imagination du correspondant lui­
meme. C'est le correspondant ou l'entreprise d'in­
formation, et non le gouvernement du pays d'ou 
part !'information, qu'il faut rendre responsable 
de 1' observance de cette condition. 

M. PENTEADO (Bresil) est oppose a l'amende­
ment propose par la Pologne. Si cet amendement 
etait adopte, un gouvernement ou un groupe 
d'individus quelconque aurait le pouvoir de deci­
der quels documents d'information il y a lieu de 
transmettre; qui pis est, les mots "de nature 
a provoquer . . . une menace contre la paix" 
peuvent meme etre interpretes comme une tenta­
tive de juger les intentions du correspondant. 
Ce sont la des possibilites qui iraient absolument 
a l'encontre du but que l'on cherche a atteindre 
au moyen de la convention et qui est d'assurer la 
liberte de !'information. 

M. DEDIJER (Yougoslavie) estime que !'inter­
vention du representant de la France a manque 
de logique. I1 semble en effet que le raisonnement 
de ce representant soit le suivant : les documents 
d'information de nature a provoquer une menace 
quelconque contre la paix sont nefastes, mais il 
est impossible de definir de tels documents et, en 
tous cas, il n'y a rien a faire pour empecher leur 
diffusion. I1 est bien vrai que, si la condamnation 
de tels documents figure dans le preambule, son 



sentative had been correct in wishing its inser­
tion in article 1 because such a provision should 
more appropriately be contained in the definitions. 
Dissemination of such news, moreover, could be 
prohibited on the analogy of the prohibition of 
obscene news material in article 9. Mr. Dedijer 
agreed with the Polish representative's statement 
that such news material was as dangerous as 
obscene literature; it was already spreading among 
children, as a recent newspaper correspondence 
showed. Newspapers which encouraged threats 
to the peace had even exploited a recent sen­
sation involving a child who had fallen into a 
well. That was the type of news material which 
should be prohibited. 

He would therefore support the Polish amend­
ment. 

Mr. ZAYDIN (Cuba) said that he would oppose 
any amendment to the original text of article 1, 
paragraph 3. The constitution of his country guar­
anteed full freedom of expression and provided 
penalties for writers whose material was likely 
to disturb public order or injure personal repu­
tation. The activities of international correspond­
ents or agencies could not be more restricted than 
those of nationals. The Polish, Peruvian and even 
the Mexican amendments introduced such restric­
tions and would therefore run contrary to the 
whole tenor of the convention, as the Brazilian 
representative had observed. 

In his own long experience as a journalist he 
had found that democratic Governments never 
feared the expression of hostile opinion. Govern­
ments could not decide what opinion was authen­
tic or what news material was likely to provoke 
a threat to the peace. In democratic countries the 
freedom of the Press was regulated by journa­
listic ethics and by public opinion. 

To prohibit certain material on the grounds of 
internal security or of good international relations 
would mean infringing not only freedom of infor­
mation but also democratic freedom in general; it 
would amount to drawing an "iron curtain" 
between the people and the facts. Taking issue with 
the Peruvian representative, he wondered who 
could determine whether an opinion was authentic 
or not. A correspondent's opinion was based upon 
a wide range of facts. A government might deter­
mine that such an opinion was not authentic if 
it conflicted with its domestic or foreign policy. 
Only the freely exercised judgment of the readers 
could decide in the last resort. The agencies and 
newspapers themselves were able to decide upon 
the reliability of the news material which a cor­
respondent transmitted ; if it were untrue, he 
would be dismissed. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
observed that the Peruvian representative's wish 
that correspondents, not Governments, should 
determine what news material was undesirable, 

46 

effet portera sur toute !a convention, mais le re­
presentant de la Pologne a eu raison de souhaiter 
la voir figurer dans !'article premier, car une dis­
position de ce genre est plus a sa place dans le 
texte consacre aux definitions. D'ailleurs, la dif­
fusion de documents de ce genre pourrait etre in­
terdite tout comme !'article 9 prevoit !'interdic­
tion des publications obscenes. M. Dedijer est 
d'accord avec le representant de la Pologne pour 
dire que de tels documents d'information sont 
aussi dangereux que la litterature obscene; deja 
on les repand parmi les enfants, comme le demon­
traient recemment des lettres adressees a la redac­
tion d'un journal. Les journaux qui repandent les 
menaces contre la paix ont ete jusqu'a tirer parti 
d'un recent fait divers sensationnel qui concernait 
un enfant tombe dans un puits. Voila le genre de 
documents d'information qu'il importe d'interdire. 

En consequence, M. Dedijer appuiera l'amende­
ment propose par la Pologne. 

M. ZAYDiN (Cuba) annonce qu'il combattra 
tout amendement au texte original du paragraphe 
3 de !'article premier. La constitution de son pays 
garantit a tous une liberte d'expression absolue 
et prevoit des mesures penales centre ceux dont 
les ecrits sont de nature a troubler 1' ordre public 
ou a porter atteinte a l'honneur de quelqu'un. On 
ne saurait imposer aux activites des correspon­
dants etrangers et des entreprises d'information in­
ternationales plus de restrictions que !'on n'en im­
pose a celles des ressortissants de son propre pays. 
Or, les amendements de la Pologne et du Perou, 
et meme celui du Mexique, introduisent des res­
trictions de cette nature et iraient par consequent 
a l'encontre des buts que vise la convention, comme 
l'a fait remarquer le representant du Bresil. 

M. Zaydin lui-meme, au cours de sa longue car­
riere de journaliste, a constate que les gouverne­
ments democratiques ne craignent jamais !'ex­
pression d'opinions adverses. Les gouvernements 
ne sont pas qualifies pour juger si une opinion est 
authentique ou si des documents d'information 
sont de nature a provoquer une menace contre la 
paix. Dans les pays democratiques, la liberte de 
la presse est regie par le code d'honneur des jour· 
nalistes et par !'opinion publique. 

Interdire certaines informations sous pretexte de 
securite interieure ou du souci de maintenir de 
bonnes relations internationales serait empieter 
non seulement sur la liberte de !'information, mais 
encore sur la liberte democratique en general; cela 
reviendrait a abaisser un "rideau de fer" entre 
le peuple et les faits. S'elevant contre la declara­
tion du representant du Perou, M. Zaydin se de­
maude qui pourrait determiner si une opinion est 
authentique ou non. C'est sur toute une serie de 
faits que se fonde !'opinion d'un correspondant. 
Un gouvernement pourrait etre tente de juger que 
cette opinion n'est pas authentique, si elle ne 
cadre pas avec sa politique interieure ou etran­
gere. Seul le jugement des lecteurs, exerce en 
toute liberte, peut decider en dernier ressort. Les 
agences de presse et les journaux sont bien capa­
bles de decider eux-memes s'il y a lieu d'ajouter 
foi aux documents d'information que leur trans­
met un correspondant; si ces documents sont con­
trouves, ils congedieront le correspondant. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) estime 
que la proposition du representant du Perou, selon 
laquelle ce seraient les correspondants, et non les 
gouvernements, qui devraient determiner quels 



was inconsistent with the text of articles 4 and 
7, which mentioned Contracting States. 

Mr. CANHAM (United States of America) 
noted that the Polish representative's observation 
concerninR statements to the Press implied yet 
another limitation on freedom of information. 
There could be no question of intimidation. The 
United Nations was the most democratic delib­
erative body in the world; all representatives en­
joyed and exercised absolutely equal rights. Any 
effort to intimidate a representative would be 
immediately and generally resented. He welcomed 
the Polish representative's exposition of United 
States history. In that connexion, he reminded 
the Committee that Thomas Jefferson had also 
said that if he had to choose between government 
without newspapers and newspapers without gov­
ernment, he would pick the latter alternative. That 
was, however, not entirely a correct statement of 
the position : democratic government and a free 
Press were closely interrelated. The presenta­
tion of criticism of the United States Press by 
Mr. HockinR, Mr. Ickes and the Hutchins Com­
mission was to be welcomed because it proved that 
the full and free right of self-criticism for the 
purpose of self-improvement existed in the United 
States of America as in other countries which 
similarly based their philosophy on freedom of 
self-criticism. ProRress was based upon the con­
tinual criticism of institutions; the existence of 
a free and diversified Press was one of the most 
important factors in that process. 

He aRreed with the representative of Cuba that 
it was of the utmost importance that the public 
itself should decide what kind of information 
should be disseminated. With regard to the Czecho­
slovak representative's argument that there might 
be a conflict between truth and freedom, the 
United States delegation did not believe that 
freedom was possible without truth nor truth 
without freedom; their interrelation was indis­
pensable. No honest United States journalist 
would claim that United States newspapers did 
not occasionally indulge in abusive practices ; that 
was the price of freedom. The existence of self­
criticism as reflected in the studies to which the 
Polish representative had referred was an attempt 
to reduce that price. Readers must be able to 
choose between different sources of information. 
Freedom of information was not a right of the 
Press but of the people. The Polish proposal that 
Governments should determine what news was 
desiRned to provoke a threat to peace would, in 
his opinion, infrinRe the people's right to freedom 
of information. 

With regard to the Indian representative's com­
plaint, derogatory films could not diminish the 
high respect of the people of the United States 
for the cultural and political achievements of 
India. The intervention of Governments, how­
ever, to safeRuard what they felt to be their own 
interests would merely create new sources of 
misunderstandinR between peoples. 

Mr. Canham felt that there was general aRree­
ment with the French and Lebanese representa-

47 

documents d'information ne sont pas souhaitables, 
est incompatible avec les dispositions des articles 
4 et 7, ou il est fait mention des Etats contrac­
tants. 

M. CANHAM (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) note 
que la remarque du representant de Ia Pologne re­
lative aux declarations a la presse sous-entend une 
nouvelle restriction a Ia liberte de !'information. II 
ne saurait etre question d'intimidation. L'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies est l'organe deliberant 
le plus democratique du monde; tous les repre­
sentants possedent et exercent des droits absolu­
ment egaux. Toute tentative d'exercer une pres­
sion sur un representant provoquerait un ressen­
timent immediat et general. M. Canham a ecoute 
avec satisfaction !'expose que le representant de Ia 
Pologne a fait sur l'histoire des Etats-Unis. II rap­
pelle a ce propos a Ia Commission que Thomas 
Jefferson a egalement declare que s'il devait choi­
sir entre un gouvernement sans presse et une 
presse sans gouvernement, i1 choisirait la seconde 
solution. Toutefois, ce n'est pas tout a fait ainsi 
que la situation se presente: il existe une liaison 
intime entre le regime democratique et une presse 
libre. II faut se rejouir des critiques que M. Hock­
ing, M. Ickes et Ia Commission Hutchins ont for­
mulees a l'egard de Ia presse des Etats-Unis, 
parce qu' elles prouvent qu'aux Etats-U nis d' Ame­
rique on a le droit de se critiquer soi-meme en 
pleine et entiere liberte en vue de se perfectionner. 
II en est de meme dans d'autres pays dont Ia 
philosophie politique est egalement fondee sur Ia 
liberte de l'autocritique. Le progres se fonde sur 
une critique constante des institutions; I' existence 
d'une presse libre et representant des points de 
vues divers constitue l'un des facteurs les plus 
importants de ce processus. 

Comme le representant de Cuba, M. Canham 
attache Ia plus grande importance a ce que le pu­
blic decide lui-meme quel est le genre d'informations 
qu'il y a lieu de diffuser. Quant a l'argument invo­
que par le representant de Ia Tchecoslovaquie et 
selon lequel il peut y avoir contradiction entre 
la verite et la liberte, Ia delegation des Etats-Unis 
ne pense pas que Ia liberte soit possible sans verite, 
ni Ia verite sans liberte : l'interdependance de ces 
deux facteurs est indispensable. Aucun joumaliste 
americain ni niera, en toute franchise, que les jour­
naux des Etats-Unis se livrent parfois a des exces. 
C'est Ia ran<;on de la liberte. L'existence de !'auto­
critique, qui ressort des etudes mentionnees par 
le representant de Ia Pologne, vise pn!cisement a 
reduire cette ran<;on. Les lecteurs doivent pouvoir 
choisir entre diverses sources d'information. La 
liberte de !'information est un droit qui appartient 
au peuple et non ala presse. M. Canham est d'avis 
que Ia proposition de Ia Pologne selon laquelle les 
gouvemements determineraient quelles sont les 
nouvelles qui sont de nature a constituer une me­
nace a la paix empiete sur le droit du peuple a la 
liberte de }'information. 

Pour ce qui est de la plainte du representant 
de l'Inde, les films defavorables a ce pays ne peu­
vent diminuer Ia grande estime que le peuple des 
Etats-U nis eprouve pour la culture de l'Inde 
et pour les progres politiques realises par ce pays. 
Toutefois, en prenant des mesures pour sauve­
garder ce qui leur parait constituer leurs propres 
interets, les gouvernements ne feraient que creer 
de nouvelles sources de friction entre les peu­
ples. 

M. Canham pense qu'un grand nombre de repre­
sentants estiment, comme les representants de la 



tives on the desirability of stating at the appropri­
ate place the moral obligations incumbent upon 
correspondents and information agencies. It 
would, however, be very difficult to include such 
a statement in the body of the convention without 
at the same time permitting it to be converted 
into an instrument for restricting the freedom of 
the Press. That statement might be set out in 
the preamble, as the French representative had 
proposed. It should undoubtedly be included, but 
the limits of governmental power and responsi­
bility should be clearly specified. Its place was 
not, therefore, in article 1. 

48 

The insertion of the word "authentic", as pro­
posed by the Peruvian delegation, would be in­
advisable since it introduced yet another problem 
of definition. Moreover, the Peruvian representa­
tive had said that correspondents, and not Gov­
ernments, should assess news material. The 
Netherlands representative had, however, ob­
served that such a provision was inconsistent with 
other articles in the convention. He himself agreed 
with the representative of Lebanon that qualifi­
cations should not be introduced into the definitions 
since they would merely increase the difficulty 
of interpretation. 

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-SEVENTH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New Y ark, 
on Wednesday, 13 April 1949, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman: Mrs. Bodil BEGTRUP (Denmark); 
Later, Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon). 

121. Freedom of information: report 
of the Economic and Social Conn· 
cil (A/ 631) (continued) 

DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE GATHERING AND 
INTERNATIONAL TRANSMISSION OF NEWS (E/ 
1065) (CONTINUED) 

Article 1, paragraph 3 (continued) 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) said that the amend­
ments proposed by Peru (A/C.3/415) and Poland 
(A/C.3/416) to paragraph 3 presented a difficulty 
which had already arisen at previous meetings. 
In ber opinion, those amendments, instead of 
guaranteeing respect for freedom of the Press, 
compromised that freedom. What was still more 
serious was that the limitations it was proposed to 
introduce in the definition would be sanctioned by 
an international convention. She recognized that 
the definitions of the term "news material" had 
certain defects, but care must be taken not to 
apply a remedy which would be worse than the 
ill itself. If it were stipulated in paragraph 3 that 
news was neither designed nor likely to provoke 
or encourage any threat to the peace, and was 
not intended as a dissemination of false or dis­
torted reports likely to injure friendly relations 
between States, the question would arise what 
news was of that type, what criteria should be 
applied to establish that and how each State 
would apply those criteria. 

France et du Liban, qu'il est souhaitable d'enon­
cer dans Ia convention, a l'endroit qui convient, les 
obligations morales qui incombent aux correspon­
dants et aux entreprises d'information. Toutefois, 
il serait tres difficile d'inserer une declaration a 
cet effet dans Ie corps meme de Ia convention sans 
risquer de Ia transformer de ce fait en un instru­
ment destine a restreindre Ia Iiberte de Ia presse. 
On pourrait faire figurer cette declaration au 
preambule, ainsi que l'a propose Ie representant 
de Ia France. II faudrait certes l'inclure, a con­
dition de preciser clairement Ies Iimites du pouvoir 
et de Ia responsabilite des gouvernements. Cette 
declaration ne serait done pas a sa place a !'article 
premier. 

II serait inopportun d'inserer le mot "authenti­
ques" comme l'a propose Ia delegation du Perou, 
car cela souleverait un nouveau probleme de de­
finition. En outre, le representant du Perou a 
declare que c'est aux correspondants et non aux 
gouvernements qu'il appartient de se prononcer 
sur Ia valeur que presentent les documents d'infor­
mation. Toutefois, Ie representant des Pays-Bas a 
fait observer que cette clause est en contradiction 
avec d'autres articles de la convention. M. Can­
ham estime, d'accord avec Ie representant du 
Liban, qu'il n'y a pas lieu d'apporter des limi­
tations aux definitions, car cela ne pourrait qu'en 
rendre !'interpretation plus difficile. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 10. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT-SEPTIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le mercredi 13 avril 1949, a 15 heures. 

President: Mme Bodil BEGTRUP (Danemark), 
puis M. Charles MALIK (Liban). 

121. Liberte de !'information: rapport 
du Conseil economique et social 
(A/631) (suite) 

PRO JET DE CONVENTION RELATIF A L' ACCES AUX 
INFORMATIONS ET A LEUR TRANSMISSION D'UN 
PAYS A L'AUTRE (A/1065) (SUITE) 

Article premier, paragraphe 3 (suite) 

Mme FrGUEROA (Chili) declare que les amen de­
ments que le Perou (A/C.3/415) et Ia Pologne 
(A/C.3j416) proposent d'apporter au paragraphe 
3 placent Ia Commission devant une difficulte qui 
s'est deja presentee au cours des seances prece­
dentes. A son avis, ces amendements, au lieu de 
garantir Ie respect de Ia liberte de Ia presse, com­
promettent cette liberte. Ce qui est plus grave en­
core, c'est que les limitations que l'on propose 
d'introduire dans Ia definition seraient consacrees 
par une convention internationale. Mme Figue­
roa reconnait que Ia definition du terme "docu­
ments d'information" comporte des imperfections, 
mais il faut veiller a ne pas appliquer un remede 
qui serait plus nefaste que le mal lui-meme. Si 
l'on precise au paragraphe 3 que Ies informations 
ne visent pas ou ne sont pas de nature a provo­
quer ou a encourager une menace contre la paix, 
ni a repandre des nouvelles propres a nuire aux 
relations d'amitie entre les Etats, Ia question se 
posera de savoir quelles sont les informations de 
ce genre, quels sont les criteres a appliquer pour 
les determiner et comment chaque Etat appliquera 
ces criteres. 




